ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
April 11, 2001
8:07 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Con Bunde, Chair
Representative Brian Porter
Representative Joe G een
Representati ve Peggy W son
Representative Gary Stevens
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative G etchen CGuess

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senat or Bettye Davis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO 71

"An Act relating to the education of children with disabilities
and of gifted children; relating to the Governor's Council on
Disabilities and Speci al Educat i on; maki ng conform ng
anendnents; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 71(EDU) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO. 85
"An Act relating to conduct directed at a school enployee as an
aggravating factor for crimnal sentencing purposes.”

- MOVED HB 85 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 211
"An Act requiring an annual inflation adjustnment of the base
student allocation used in the fornula for state funding of
publ i c education; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- April 11, 2001



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 71
SHORT TI TLE: EDUC. OF DI SABLED OR G FTED CHI LDREN
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/17/01 0112 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/17/01 0112 (H EDU, HES, FIN

01/17/01 0112 (H FN 1. ZERQ( EED)

01/17/01 0112 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

02/ 07/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 07/ 01 (H Heard & Held

02/ 07/ 01 (H M NUTE( EDU)

03/ 14/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 14/ 01 (H Heard & Held

03/ 14/01 (H M NUTE( EDU)

04/ 04/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

04/ 04/ 01 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 11/01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 85

SHORT TI TLE: AGGRAVATI NG FACTORS | N SENTENCI NG
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) COGHI LL

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 22/ 01 0143 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 22/ 01 0143 (H EDU, HES, JUD

02/ 14/ 01 0328 (H COSPONSOR( S) : DYSON

04/ 11/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 211
SHORT TI TLE: FOUNDATI ON FORMULA | NCREASE
SPONSOR(S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) GUESS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 26/ 01 0729 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 26/ 01 0729 (H EDU, HES, FIN

03/ 26/ 01 0729 (H) REFERRED TO EDU

04/ 11/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- April 11, 2001



BRUCE JOHNSQON, Deputy Conm ssioner of Education
O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent
801 West 10th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 71.

GREG MALONEY, Director

Speci al Education

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment
801 West 10th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99501

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 71.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHAN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 102

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 85.

RI CHARD KRONBERG, Presi dent

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska
3511 Chiniak Bay Drive

Anchor age, Al aska 99515

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 85.

EDDI E JEANS, Manager

School Finance and Facilities Section
Educati on Support Services

Department of Education and Early Devel opnment
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 211.

HARRI ET DRUMMOND, Menber

Anchor age School Board

2139 Hillcrest Place

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 211.

DAVE JONES, Director of Finance

Kenai |sland Borough School District

722 M1l Bay Road

Kodi ak, Al aska 99615

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 211.

JOHN HOLST, Superi nt endent

Sitka School District
PO Box 179

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- April 11, 2001



Sitka, Al aska 99835
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 211.

DARRELL HARGRAVES, Executive D rector

Al aska Council| of School Adm nistrators
326 4th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99811

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 211.

CARL ROCSE, Executive Director
Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards

316 West 11th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 211.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-24, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR CON BUNDE called the House Special Committee on Education
neeting to order at 8:07 a.m Menbers present at the call to
order were Representatives Bunde, Porter, Geen, Stevens, and
Quess. Representatives WIson and Joule joined the neeting as
it was in progress.

HB 71-EDUC. OF DI SABLED OR G FTED CHI LDREN

CHAI R BUNDE announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 71, "An Act relating to the education of children
with disabilities and of gifted children; relating to the
Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education; making
conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date."

Nunber 0127

BRUCE JOHNSON, Deputy Comm ssioner of Education, Ofice of the
Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent
(EED), cane forward and stated that [the EED] held a statew de
tel econference on March 14 with several GI (gifted and tal ented)

constituents, including parents, advocat es, t eachers, and
directors. After sone significant discussion on what was before
the legislature, [the EED] has offered three anmendnents. He
explained that the first [amendnment] has to do wth |[east
restrictive environnment. Peopl e had been concerned that GT
students could not be grouped together w thout age-appropriate
peers. [The EED s] intent previously was that the |[east

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- April 11, 2001



restrictive environnent |anguage in the bill did not preclude
that; however, since there has been concern, [the EED] believes
it makes sense to delete that section

MR. JOHNSON expl ained that the second [anendnent] has to do with
rei nbursenent for the transportation of gifted children.
[ Al aska] has been providing transportation for GI students for a
| ong period of tine. He stated that the only reason [the EED]
has left [this language] out is to bring this issue before the
public for discussion. There is a lot of concern about the
i ncreased cost for student transportation; however, he expl ai ned
that this [provision] is very discretionary in terns of how the
state deals with it. Cearly, he said, GI parents and advocates
of GI feel that this is a very inportant piece for them to
continue in order to serve GI students.

MR, JOHNSON, said, the last [amendnment] has to do wth due

process hearings. [ The EED] does not have federal dollars;
therefore, there is not an increnental approach to settling
di sputes involving GI. He added that in discussions on March
14, individuals felt that they would like to have nediation
built in, since all conplaint renedy is at the district's
expense anyway. [ The EED] has added mandatory nedi ation, which
is a nore positive and proactive approach. Therefore, if a
parent of a GI student requests a due process hearing, it would
automatically "kick in" to a nmandatory nediation. If it wasn't

resolved there, he stated, the parents could continue to pursue
it through the due process.

MR.  JOHNSON added that one other anmendnment [the EED] is

suggesting is on page 11, line 24, which talks about the
identification of vari ous categories of chil dren W th
disabilities. He stated that there was "speech inpairnent” and

now [the EED] has agreed to bring that to "speech or |[|anguage
i npai rnent".

Nunmber 0507

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE nmade a notion to adopt Anendnent 1, which
read [original punctuation and capitalization included]:

Page 15, 4-9

Del et e: [ SEC. 14. 30. 355. LEAST RESTRI CTI VE
ENVI RONIVENT. EACH SCHOCL DI STRICT SHALL ENSURE THAT
TO THE MAXI MUM EXTENT APPROPRI ATE, G FTED CHI LDREN ARE
EDUCATED W TH CH LDREN WHO ARE NOI' G FTED AND THAT

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- April 11, 2001



SPECI AL CLASSES, SEPARATE SCHOOLI NG, OR OTHER REMOVAL
O GFTED CHLDREN FROM THE REGULAR EDUCATI ONAL
ENVI RONVENT OCCURS ONLY WHEN EDUCATION I N REGULAR
CLASSES WTH THE USE OF SUPPLEMENTARY AIDS AND
SERVI CES CANNOT BE ACHI EVED SATI SFACTCORI LY. ]

| nsert: Sec. 14. 30. 355. Rei nbur senent for
transportation of gifted chil dren. State
rei nbursenent for transportation of gifted children
shall be provided as for transportation of all other
pupils except that eligibility for reinbursenent is
not limted to transportation to and fromthe child's
residence to the school but shal [sic] also include
transportati on between schools and other |ocations of
instruction as required by the child's individualized
gi fted educati on program

Thi s amendnent removes al | "| east restrictive
envi ronnent " | anguage as it pertains to
gifted/talented students, and adds in a provision for
the transportation of gifted/talented students. Thi s

transportation is currently reinbursed, so to not add
it back in neans taking away a service that 1is
currently provided for those students. This anendnent
does not affect the fiscal note.

CHAI R BUNDE obj ected for discussion purposes.
REPRESENTATIVE JOULE stated that in public testinony [the

commttee] heard from parents who feel that their gifted and
talented children really benefit from the ability to have the

"pullouts.” He remarked that Allison Brummer (ph), a [student],
he wanted to testify on this point that she wished to continue
to have this environnent. Thi s anendnent, he expl ained, would

delete that |anguage and then insert in its place the |anguage
on transportation.

CHAI R DYSON stated that he sees sone irony in this. There was
the thrust for nmainstream ng special-education Kkids, but now
"we" want to make sure that gifted kids aren't I|ike the
mai nstream He asked M. Johnson if he sees the sane irony.

Nunber 0646
MR. JOHNSON responded that these are two different popul ations.

Rol e nodeling that can occur in a regular classroom nakes a huge
difference in the lives of children with disabilities. He

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- April 11, 2001



stated that there are people who feel that the right way to
serve GI kids is in a pullout environnent with |ike students.
Whether that is full-day or partial-day varies all over the
state. For exanple, in Anchorage there is a full-day program
for the brightest students, as neasured by their 1@, and there
are several other layers of prograns. Some children are served
at their neighborhood schools in a pullout program He added
that it is not wi despread across the state for kids to be served
W thout their age-appropriate peers since nbst communities are
not | arge enough to do this.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that if students were pulled out on a full-
time basis, it would deprive the average student of that sane
| eadership role nodeling that is so valuable for special-
education Kkids. He pointed out that when all of the gifted
students are together there is a "pecking order."

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER renarked that he could speak for

a half an hour about why he doesn't Ilike this
anmendnent . However, he said once these folks figure
out how to fund these prograns of "extra specia
treatment” he will support it.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE noted that he has five children on both
ends of the spectrum special education and GIT. There were
pul louts [for the special-education kids] to address the areas
in which they needed help. These were not all day long. On the
gifted and tal ented spectrum he said, it was basically the sane
thing. He shared that the experience the children in gifted and
talented had was structured in such a way that they had the
benefit of the regular classroom for nost of the day at school
as well as tinme with other individuals who were pulled out of
cl ass. Overall, he said, he thinks it served a very good
pur pose.

CHAI R BUNDE suggested that his comrents are just a caution that
there should be m ni mum pul | out.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE added that there is another bill that may
be used as a vehicle for gifted students within charter schools.
He suggested that if that noves forward that m ght take care of
sone of these issues.

Number 0980

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Stevens, Joule,
GQuess, and Bunde voted in favor of Amendnent 1. Representatives

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- April 11, 2001



Porter and Green voted against it. [ Representative WIson was
absent.] Therefore, Amendnent 1 was adopted by a vote of 4-2.

Number 0991

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE nmade a notion to adopt Anmendnent 2, which
read [original punctuation and capitalization included]:

Page 15, line 31, through page 16, |ine 6:
Delete current text and replace with the foll ow ng:

(b) If a due process hearing is requested by
either a parent or the school district, the district
shal | appoi nt a trained, i nparti al nediator to
admnister a nediation process in an attenpt to
resolve the disputes between the parents and the

district. The nediator nay not be an enpl oyee of the
district and nust not have a personal or professiona
conflict of interest in the natter in dispute. The
district shall bear the <costs of the nediation
process.

(c) If the nediation process required in (b) of
this section does not resolve all of the issues raised
in the request for a due process hearing provided
under (a) of this subsection, the school district
shal |l contact the departnent to request appointnent of
an available hearing officer. The departnent shal
select a hearing officer through a random sel ection
process, from a |list maintained by the departnent.
Wthin five working days after receipt of the request
for appointnent of a hearing officer, the departnent
shall provide to the district and the parent a notice
of appoi ntnent, including the nane, and a statenent of
qualifications, of the hearing officer that the
departnent determnes is available to conduct the

heari ng.

Page 16, line 7: Change "(c)" to "(d)"
Page 16, |ine 16: Change "(d)" to "(e)"
Page 16, |ine 26: Change "(e)" to "(f)"

This anmendnent adds in a requirenent of nediation
prior to a dispute going to a hearing officer.
Medication is far |ess expensive, and is often a nore

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- April 11, 2001



positive route for resolution of conflicts. The cost
of settling disputes is handled by the district

currently, so this does not inpose an unfunded
mandat e. In fact, changing the bill lowers the cost
of handling disputes for gifted/talented children, for
districts.

CHAI R BUNDE obj ected for discussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE explained that this addresses the issue of
due process.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that he thinks the idea of nediation being
required is sonething that could strengthen the process. He
removed his objection. He announced that there being no further
obj ection, Anendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Nunber 1040

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE nmade a notion to adopt Anmendnent 3, which
read [original punctuation and capitalization included]:

Page 11, line 24

Change to:
() speech or | anguage i npairnent;
This is an anmendnent requested by the Departnent and
pertains to identification of Speci al Educati on
students.
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN obj ect ed. He asked how inpaired a
"l anguage inpairnment” is. For exanple, if someone hasn't been

in the country very long and understands what's going on but may
not be able to comunicate freely, would that be |anguage
i npai r ment ?

CHAIR BUNDE stated that this is not a second | anguage but how [a
student] is doing in the English |anguage. He said there are
age-appropri ate paraneters. He added that the dichotony of
speech is, "How do you pronounce the words?" Language is, "How
do you use the words to achi eve your needs?”

GREG MALONEY, Director, Speci al Educati on, Depart ment of
Education and Early Devel opnent, cane forth and stated that the
assessnment process is designed to exclude [|anguage [problens]
related to bilingual issues or other |anguages used that my
mask a real |anguage deficit. He explained that it is nore of

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- April 11, 2001



an internal process of how a person processes | anguage. He
added that nmany people have interpreted speech inpairnent to

primarily mean articulation; however, |anguage is a broader
category of how sonebody expresses |anguage as well as receives
| anguage. He clarified that this is in |line wth |DEA

(Individuals with D sabilities Education Act) 97s, federal
| anguage regardi ng speech or |anguage inpairnents, but it does
specifically talk to excluding other |anguages.

Nunber 1184

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN stated that it is not a [|language] issue if
a person has trouble pronouncing, but if a person can't put a
sentence together to get his or her idea across or interpret
what is said, it is. He asked, if he were a second-| anguage
person, whether the interpreting would be a problem

MR. MALONEY responded that it would be nore the person's
ability. Primarily the assessnent in English is where the
speci al education would cone in. He explained that if a person
is having trouble enunciating and the assessnent indicates that
it is not an accent problem then that would not be an
i npedi nent . | f sonebody has an articulation problem whereby he
or she may slur sonme of the letters or have a structural problem
Wi th pronouncing certain letters, that can be renedi ated through
t herapy; that could be a disability. He added that it is not a
science but that the assessnent is designed to exclude non-
disability types of situations.

REPRESENTATI VE CGREEN asked if this wuld include speech
[ npairnment].

MR.  MALONEY answered yes. He clarified that [with the
anendnent] the services would be the sane; it's nore of a
technical change to neke sure everybody knows that it covers
bot h speech and | anguage.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that the (indisc.) authority of speech

therapy includes a |list; however, there isn't a bright line that
says, "This is just a speech problem this is a I|anguage
problem"” There are people who have |anguage problens who can

al so have articulation problens. However, he said, the |anguage
problem is much nore global and far nore debilitating than, for
exanpl e, sonmeone having a lisp.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- April 11, 2001



MR. MALONEY added that frequently |anguage [inpairnent] is also
tied in to sonmeone having a learning disability. Therefore, it
is a nore global kind of processing deficit.

Nurmber 1308
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN renoved hi s objection.

CHAIR BUNDE renarked that he is sure that there are many people
who would strongly object to being placed under an IEP sinply
because English was their second |anguage. He announced t hat
there being no further objection, Anendnent 3 was adopt ed.

MR, JOHNSON asked if, when [the comm ttee] adopted Anendnent 1,
which deleted the least restrictive environnent |anguage, the
rei mbursenent for transportation [language] was inserted.

CHAI R BUNDE answered yes. He asked what the fiscal inpact of
Amendnent 1 woul d be.

MR. JOHNSON responded that [the EED] is currently doing this
therefore, it is not included as a fiscal note.

Number 1367

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER stated that he hopes [the House Finance
Commttee] takes a serious |ook at that particular inclusion,
whi ch he said he woul d categorize as a "black hole."

CHAIR BUNDE stated that he has mxed feelings about the bill
however, there is testinony from [the EED] that it 1is not
sonet hing that has to be done right away.

Nunber 1450

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE made a notion to nove HB 71, as anended
from conmttee wth individual recommendations and attached
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 71(EDU) was noved
fromthe House Special Committee on Education.

HB 85- AGGRAVATI NG FACTORS | N SENTENCI NG

CHAI R BUNDE announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 85, "An Act relating to conduct directed at a
school enployee as an aggravating factor for crimnal sentencing
pur poses. "

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- April 11, 2001



Nunmber 1500

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL, Alaska State Legislature, cane
forth as sponsor of HB 85. He stated that HB 85 brings an
aggravating factor to violence against a person who is a schoo
enpl oyee. He said, unfortunately, violence has not waned, and
this shows enployees that they are being supported. He said he
doesn't anticipate that this is going to be used a |ot; however,
there are many [students] in the schools who are not well
disciplined. He noted that NEA (National Education Associ ation)
came to himwith the idea. He remarked

One of the things that is of particular interest to ne
is that many of the things that we do here in this
education committee and the HES Commttee [Health,
Education and Social Services Standing Comrittee] is
pass a lot of issues that kind of Iland in the

teacher's | ap. I'"'m always interested in how to nake
life a little better for the teachers, for those who
work within the school bui | di ng, but I t hi nk
especially in the classroom A lot of our issues,
just like the special education or the gifted and
talented, end up right in the classroom and we have
quite a mx of issues. ... Teachers then find

thensel ves in the awkward position of not only being
managers of time and the nmuch paper work we give them
to do, but of students who are not well disciplined.
| think HB 85 backs that up a little bit - gives them
sonme confidence that we're going to do that.

CHAIR BUNDE shared that a parent, who was a "giant of a man,"
had visited sonmeone in a local school and said, "I've been to
jail and I'"'mnot afraid of going back. Now let's talk about ny
son's grades."” He stated that it isn't just bullies that are in
the classroom on a regular basis; they may cone in all kinds of
shapes and forns. He referred to Representative Coghill's
comment that he doesn't anticipate using this a |ot and asked at
what point any assault becones a fel ony.

Nunber 1061

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER responded that [it depends on] the degree
of actual or potential physical danger and injury.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if this would be used only when the assault
was a felony or to raise the assault to a felony.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- April 11, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL replied that this is under the felony
assault issue.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that pushing and shoving probably would not
be included, but threatening with a baseball bat would be. He
said that if a person is in a felony situation, this would
probably not be used a great deal because it is already a felony
char ge. But the notion, at |east for young people, that this
m ght increase the potential of a felony charge nmay be a
deterrent.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL stated that once a person gets into a

school building and a felony occurs, this "ups" the limt.
Judges wll be given discretionary power to say, "There's an
aggravator here, and we'll use it to the fullest extent."

Number 1735

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked about a case in which a defendant
knowi ngly directs the conduct. For instance, a father who is
irritated with someone in the school district, whom his child
comes in contact with, rants and raves at honme about how [the
school worker] ought to be "horsewhipped,” and then the child
goes into the school and nmakes sone sort of a threat but clains
that his father directed him The parent nmay not have know ngly
directed the child to go threaten [the person], but [the
father's] conduct resulted in that. Representative G een asked
if that is stretching too far

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER responded that he doesn't think that an
internediary between the threat and the victim would constitute
this.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated that [the bill] is kept within the
exercise of official duties, so it wouldn't be sonething that
happens as a course of activity [outside of the school].

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN remarked that he was just concerned about
sone |iberal judge deciding that there was sone tie [between the
threat and the victim.

Number 1848

RI CHARD KRONBERG, President, National Educati on Associ ati on-
Al aska (NEA- Al aska), cane forth and stated:

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- April 11, 2001



It is always tragic when we have violence in our
comunities, but it's especially problematic when that
violence is brought into schools. W don't view HB 85
as a silver bullet that's going to end that violence.
It's one nore tool that can be in the tool kit for
schools and communities to deal with the issue of

vi ol ence. We brought it to Representative Coghill as
a result of actions by our delegate assenbly asking us
to do this. And we appreciate not just the

introducing [of] the legislation, but the words that
the Representative just used, as one way for all of us
to [support] those [folks] in the schools who are on
the front lines nmaking sure that our kids have every
opportunity to succeed.

CHAIR BUNDE asked M. Kronberg if [ NEA-Al aska] provi des
i nformation regardi ng violence in schools.

MR. KRONBERG responded that NEA- Al aska has conmitted significant
resources to dealing with the issues of violence, and that
prepared materials are distributed to nenbers and other folks in
the comunity that outline ways to deal with the issue. He
added that, personally, he doesn't think there is such a thing
as school violence; there is violence in the conmunity that

conmes in to schools. Therefore, schools by thenselves can't
solve the problens of violence in the community but can be part
of the solution. He noted that [NEA-Alaska], in conjunction
with [the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent], runs
wor kshops and training sessions on this issue. He added that
[ NEA- Al aska] thanks the legislature for actions that have
al ready been taken, such as Representative Dyson's bill, which

requires a reporting of violence and has caused districts to
nove forward and devel op pl ans.

Nunmber 1988

CHAIR BUNDE, in regard to Representative Dyson's bill, asked
what the incident rate in Al aska is now.

MR. KRONBERG answered that he does not have the data yet. He
said he thinks the reporting requirenments are going to "kick in"
pretty soon and [the legislature] should get the data relatively
soon in order to make an assessnent.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if [that data] would include the "group fight
club" that took place at Service H gh School .

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- April 11, 2001



MR. KRONBERG responded that he does not know. He stated that he
i mgi nes that since the Anchorage School District treated that
as an incident that began in school, it would probably be
reported.

Nunber 2070

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN renarked that he was very interested in M.
Kronberg's statenent, "There isn't violence in the schools;
there's violence in the comunity that's brought into the
school ." He stated:

W get these interviews back from violence like [at]
Col unmbi ne and other schools where there's shootings,
and invariably they say, "Well, John was really acting
strange for the |ast week and then on Thursday he cane
in and bl asted.”

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked M. Kronberg if he feels there is
anything that the schools either should or can do in a situation
li ke that. He said that wasn't "violence in the community"
because few peopl e knew he was going to do that.

MR. KRONBERG replied that he thinks one of the things that is
dealt with in the docunments [provided in the commttee nenber's
packets] is how personnel can clearly identify students who are
troubled and have the potential to engage in those sorts of
activities. He stated that school personnel need training to be
able to do that and they need the resources. He added that one
piece of training he thinks is needed is for people not to just
ignore it. It is necessary to be able to identify the
di fference between having a bad day and being ready to "break."

Nunber 2147

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER nmade a notion to nove HB 85 from comittee
Wi th individual recommendations and the attached zero fisca
not e. There being no objection, HB 85 noved from the House
Speci al Comm ttee on Educati on.

HB 211- FOUNDATI ON FORMULA | NCREASE

CHAI R BUNDE announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 211, "An Act requiring an annual inflation
adj ustnent of the base student allocation used in the formula
for state funding of public education; and providing for an
effective date.”

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- April 11, 2001



Number 2220

REPRESENTATIVE JOULE nmde a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 211, version 22-LS0799\C, Ford,
4/10/01, as a work draft. There being no objection Version C
was before the commttee.

TAPE 01-24, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS, speaking as the sponsor of HB 211,
expl ai ned that the proposed CS has two changes. The first draft
stated, "the preceding fiscal year", whereas the proposed CS
states, "the second preceding calendar year". She expl ai ned
that CPls [consuner price indexes] are not calculated on a
fiscal -year basis but on a cal endar year basis. She stated that
after discussions with [the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent], it was decided, for planning purposes, that it
woul d be best to use the CPI from the second preceding year.
That way, people could estinmate what the foundation fornula

woul d ook |ike wunder inflation-proofing. She remarked that
this is the major change, and because of this, "January 1999" on
the last |line of page 10 replaced "January 2000" [from the

original bill].

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS continued, stating that this is a sinple
bill but a conplex policy issue. It fundanentally shifts how
schools are funded by saying the base student allocation of the
foundation fornula is going to be inflation-proofed every year.
She explained that the CPI would evaluate every year what a

bundl e of goods costs in Anchorage. This is everything from
bread and mlk to some services; it is what the standard normis
for determning inflation. She stated that Anchorage is
actually the only area in Alaska that is |arge enough to have a
CPI . The reason she said she is using the Anchorage CPl is
because the cost differential is in the fornula that takes into
consideration the credentials for the different areas. Thi s
bill would allow that every year the base student allocation
would go up for what inflation was two years preceding it. She

said, in her mnd, this would ensure the buying powers for the
school districts and ensure that they remai n constant.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS renmarked that funding went up 5 percent in
the 1990s, but inflation went up 30 percent and enroll nment went
up 25 percent. She explained that decisions are nmade on
i nfl ation-proofing. For exanple, the permanent fund is an
investnment that needs to be kept steady; therefore, every year

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- April 11, 2001



it is inflation-proofed. She said by inflation-proofing the
foundation formula, the investnent would be kept constant.

Nunber 2067

CHAI R BUNDE asked if the $7.8 mllion fiscal note would be for
inflation-proofing for just the |ast year.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS responded that he is correct. She said it
woul d be based on the annual CPI for 1999, which was 1 percent.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if it would be safe to assune that would be
the inflation-proofing for the foll ow ng year.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS answered that the follow ng year would use
t he base of $2,000, which would be 1.7 percent. Therefore, the
fiscal note next year would be $14 million, which would include
[this year's $7.8 million].

CHAIR BUNDE stated that there is a bill in the House Finance
Commttee regarding a study of area cost differentials and it
was discussed that there is a difference between the cost of
doing business in a community and the cost of providing
education in a community. He asked if there is sone parallel
here, that the inflation index for education mght possibly be
different than for general business.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS responded that he is correct. If this were
to be done accurately, there would be an education price index,
whi ch | ooked at the cost of goods that a school district has to

buy. G ven that the nation and econom sts have yet to figure
out how to do that, the next best "proxy" is the CPI. It is the
best proxy, but it is not accurate. She said nost likely an EP
(education price index), especially wth the low |abor rate
right now, would go up at a higher rate than a CPIl. However

there isn't a good source for that.
Nunmber 1924
EDDI E JEANS, Manager, School Finance and Facilities Section,

Educati on Support Services, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (EED), cane forth and stated that the EED supports

this bill. He clarified that the 1 percent increase would
affect fiscal year 2002; therefore, it would be an increase in
next year's budget. He explained that this was done
specifically so [the EED] would know what the price index
increase was in order to build it into the budget. The previous

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- April 11, 2001



bill version required the 2000 price index to be used, but that
just came out in February; therefore, the EED would not have
been able to build that into the budget on an ongoing basis. He
expl ained that now that the price index for 2000 is available,
t he budget for fiscal year 2003 would be based on a 1.7 percent
inflation increase, which is estimated to be a $14 mllion
increase. He added that he would have to anmend the fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN stated that he is confused wth the
sponsor's statenent concerning the 30 percent increase over the
| ast decade. He said he is concerned that if there were another
decade like this past one, and had this been done a decade ago,
t he school budget would be over $900 mlli on.

MR. JEANS remarked that Representative Geen is correct with the
increase in the inflation over the last ten years. However,
districts' purchasing power has decreased by approximately that
30 percent. Therefore, it may be that a $900 million budget for
K-12 [kindergarten through 12th grade] education would be nore
appropriate than what today's is.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN responded that he is nore worried that the
fiscal note may be on the | ow side.

Number 1794
CHAI R BUNDE st at ed:

Whenever we do this, | am a little concerned that we
take the spending level that we had in the early '80s,
when we had to hurry up and spend nobney because it
m ght get bad. So we did all we could to convert
dollars to concrete at some record rate, but that
woul d have been a normal or even necessary spending
| evel . And we're judging from that. It is very
possible in sone areas - and | don't know if education
is one of them - that we were spending way too nuch.
And nmuch of what the public has expressed in
frustration as far as asking for reductions in state
spending, | think, is based on [the fact] that we may
wel | have been spending too nuch at one point.

MR. JEANS responded that he understands Chair Bunde's point and

his concerns that there was a lot of noney in the late '70s and
early '80s that was thrown at education. He stated:

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- April 11, 2001



But the fact is, over the last ten years, inflation
has increased 30 percent and the funding increase has
only gone up 5 percent. So at sone point we have to
recogni ze that we've conpensated for that perceived
overfunding in the '80s, and we need to get back on
track with where we really should be funding school in
this state. |1'd hate to see it go so far to the other
side that we can't recruit good, qualified teachers.
| think we're already starting to see that.

Districts have to make the hard choices - where they
spend their noney - and this legislature is holding
districts very accountable for the noney they get. A
couple of years ago the legislature passed [a bill]
requiring districts to denonstrate that they have
preventative nmintenance prograns before they are

eligible for school construction funding. "' m not
saying that districts were [not] doing that, it's just
that they didn't docunent it very well. So now they
have added expenses there of providing that added
docunentation. ... Teachers' salaries go up every
year.

My friends in Kenai tell ne a mllion dollars of their
budget on an annual basis has to be shifted from sone
ot her source over to teacher salaries. ... | think the
Kenai School District is a good exanple of a district
that has really held the Iine. At one point during
the '"80s they had a two-tiered contract. I n ot her

words, their new teachers conming in were being paid on
a different salary schedule than their long-tine
t eachers.

| think the districts in this state have stepped to
the table and have heard the direction from the
| egi sl ature. The other thing is, | wunderstand the
| egi slature's reluctance wth inflation-proofing the
base student allocation because people would see that

as an automatic increase. As Representative GQGuess
sai d, "There's al ways an opportunity to make
adjustnments.” | know that's hard for the |egislature.

But the departnent believes strongly that we need to
do sonething to get us back on track

The State of Alaska's per-pupil expenditures conpared

to the nation have been dropping at quite an
accelerated rate. Ten years ago we spent nore than

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- April 11, 2001



any state in the nation per-pupil basis, on education.
And we're dropping down bel ow nunber ten in the nation
NOWw. | would suggest to you all that we have greater
difficulties in providing our educational system in
the great state of Alaska than nobst other states
because of the renoteness of many of our communities.

CHAI R BUNDE remarked that M. Jeans had hit on sonething that a
nunber of [legislators] are concerned about. Wth the demanded
i ncreased accountability, for exanple, wth the H gh School
Qual i fying Exam nore resources and noney should be rewarded for
a job well done. Human nature being what it is, he said, a
person gets a guaranteed raise every year but doesn't always
work as hard as he or she would under sone kind of nerit or
bonus [systen]. This [inflation-proofing] would take nore than
the avail able noney the state m ght want to invest in education,
and would preclude providing nerit pay for schools and schoo

districts since everybody is going to get an automatic increase.

Nunmber 1569

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked if the school system has | ooked at
getting "outside the box." For exanple, in rural areas where it
is nore expensive, there could be soneone in the classroons who
is a disciplinarian while the children are taught over nonitors,
since they are already watching tel evision. He added that this
has done extrenely well in adult education.

MR. JEANS responded that the education task force did nake a
recomendation for such a program for approximately $2 mllion
to be appropriated to the state correspondence program There
are teachers on staff who could provide the expertise in fields
such as mat hemati cs. The teacher on site, he said, would then
becone the nentor.

CHAIR BUNDE noted that also going through the legislature was
| egi sl ation that would encourage rural districts to make a | ocal
contri bution. If the state contribution goes up every year,
that coul d perhaps reduce that incentive as well.

Nunmber 1456
HARRI ET  DRUMMOND, Member , Anchorage  School Board (ASB),
testified via teleconference. She stated that the ASB had

passed a resolution in support of in-state funding for K-12
education. She read the resolution to the commttee:

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- April 11, 2001



WHEREAS during the last ten years budget of the
Anchorage School District has been [inpacted] by
approximately a 30 percent increase in the cost of
index while the same funding fornmula has only
i ncreased by 5 percent;

WHEREAS during the last 10 years Anchorage School
District's general fund revenue from state sources has
decreased from 73.37 percent to 62.56 percent while
general fund revenues from |local taxes has increased
from 23.7 percent to 31.33 percent of annual budgets;

WHEREAS the Anchorage School District is no |onger
able to be conmpetitive in enployee salaries and has
seen nmarked increases in unfilled positions and
decreases in its ability to attract proficient
qualified staff;

VWHEREAS both federal and state governnments continue to
require nore and nore services including the Quality
School s Initiative and t he I ndi vi dual s W th
Disabilities Educati on Act wi t hout provi di ng
commensur at e fundi ng;

WHEREAS for the wupcoming year the Anchorage Schoo
Board has to deal with approximately a $12 nmllion
deficit just to nmaintain current levels of service to
our students;

WHEREAS the Governor's non-partisan task force on
education funding examned how best to focus on
student achievenent and recommended a $45 mllion
increase in state funding for next year;

VWHEREAS the Governor has announced that 15 mllion
additional dollars are available from increases in
school trust earnings, and local and federal aid are
requiring the state to put fewer general fund dollars
into next year's funding formula;

WHEREAS (indisc.) being considered by wealthy Al aska
Senate and House are significantly less than the
anount authorized for |ast year's take hone education
expendi t ure;

Now therefore be it resolved, the Anchorage School
Board supports | egi sl ation t hat significantly

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- April 11, 2001



i ncreases the anmount of state funding appropriated for
K-12 educati on.

Nunber 1282

DAVE JONES, Director of Finance, Kodiak Island Borough School
District, testified via teleconference. He stated:

The lack of inflation-proofing in the foundation
formula is causing serious burdens across the state.
Il will try and relate to you the specific effects it
has had on Kodi ak school s. From 1989 through 2000,
state revenue per student has actually decreased by
2.5 percent in Kodiak. During this sanme tinme period,
the Anchorage consunmer price index has risen 32.9
per cent. The conbined result has been a serious
decline in purchasing power for the school district.
Qur borough has increased their support by 109 percent
in that sanme tinme period. This support has partially
shielded us fromthe effects of inflation, but we have
still been forced to make program cuts in recent
years. In FY [fiscal year] 2000, we cut $242,000 from
our budget and wused the remaining $350,000 of
avai l abl e fund balance. In FY 2001, we were forced to
cut $824,000 from our budget. These were serious cuts
that directly affected our ability to provide adequate
instruction to our students.

In FY "02, without adding any programnms, we are |ooking
at a $523,000 deficit. Wwen we |ook at the reason for
the deficit, inflation is the clear culprit. Qur fuel
costs have increased by $109, 000. This is a 28.9
per cent i ncrease. Qur electricity costs have
increased by $134,000, which is an increase of 16.6
percent. These are only two exanples of one-year
inflation increases that are not addressed in the
current foundation formul a. W t hout addi ti onal
funding to address these inflationary costs, we wll
again be forced to nmke further cuts to our
educati onal prograns. After making over one mllion
dollars' worth of cuts in the last ten years, there is
clearly no fat or excess in our budget. The $523, 000
deficit we are facing will result in the elimnation
of approximtely eight teaching positions. This wll
have devastating effects on our ability to provide an
adequat e education to the students in Kodi ak.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- April 11, 2001



The effects of inflation are not isolated to the
i sland of Kodiak al one. The exanples | gave you are
being faced by school districts across the state.
Based on these facts, the Al aska Association of School
Business Oficials (ALASBO included the need to
i nflation-proof the foundation fornmula as one of only
three itens on our legislative agenda for this year

The costs of inflation have resulted in serious cuts
to our educational prograns; at the sane tinme, we have
been given higher perfornmance standards. House Bill
211 would elimnate future educational cuts caused by
inflation, and | urge you to support this bill

Number 1132

JOHN HOLST, Superintendent, Sitka School District, testified via
t el econf erence. He stated that he would like to echo what the
previ ous two speakers have said. Cearly, he said, inflation is
eating "us" alive. He stated that the Sitka School District is
budgeting about $85,000 nore in its fixed cost this year just
for fuel, and textbooks have gone up about 200 percent in the
past five years. He stressed that it is absolutely mandatory
for the legislature, as soon as possible, to elimnate the
i mpacts of inflation and go beyond that. To just say inflation-
proof is not going to make up for the cuts that have been nade
over the five to ten years that have started to seriously
cripple districts in retaining teachers and inplenmenting the

| egi sl ative requirenents in terns of i mprovi ng school
per f or mance. He added that [the Sitka School District] is in
support of student perfornmance; however, it is desperately in

need of assi stance.
Number 1035
DARRELL HARGRAVES, Executive Director, Al aska Council of School

Adm ni strators (ACSA), cane forth and stated that [M. Jeans]
gave an excellent |esson about that ravaging effects of

i nflation. He stated that inflation is a word "we've" been
cautioned not to use, but this "eroding purchasing power"™ has
caused great stress on school districts. He said he thinks

school districts have tried heroically to conply with all of the
accountability nmeasures that have been put in place in recent
years. However, there is a problemin schools across the state
today, and nuch of it conmes from inflation that has cut the
pur chasi ng power.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- April 11, 2001



MR. HARGRAVES remarked that M. Jeans had nentioned the fact
that there are nmaintenance reporting requirenents, which the
| egi sl ature mandated because it didn't think schools were being
kept up at the level they should be. However, he said, he was
in a district when that conpliance requirenment occurred; the
districtwi de maintenance staff there was reduced from four to
one. That happened, he said, as a result of some huge
inflationary problems with no increase in foundation funding.
He stated that school districts have been preparing graphs
showi ng the |oss of purchasing power over the past decade. The
| ast one he did was in 1995 or 1996. He said he went back to
1986 and found, for that decade, a very distinct 35 percent
decrease in purchasing power of that school district's incone
from the revenues from the state. Wth those significant
factors, he remarked, that he thinks it has to be accepted that
schools are having a terrible tinme naking do with what they

have. The truth is, he said, districts that used to have
assi stant superintendents to work with the conpliance factors
that the legislature put in place have disappeared. There are

school districts today where the current enployees don't
remenber when the district had a curriculumdirector.

MR. HARGRAVES added that the school admnistrators, through
[testinmony on] |egislation, have indicated that they support a
$200 increase this year in the per-student allocation, and that
they felt that it would have to take place each year for the
next five years in order to get up to the levels of a decade
ago.

Nunmber 0800

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards [AASB], canme forth and stated that he concurs with much
that has been said. He said he thinks there are three areas to
be concerned about, and inflation-proofing is one of them \Wen
[ AASB] | ooked at what the needs are of the system two areas
were driving [them: student achievenent and accountability.
"We" also identified that capturing the actual needs in terns of
cost was one way of going about addressing what needed to be
done. However, [AASB] did not want to tal k about the inpact of
inflation outright, but wanted to recognize what had happened

over a period of ten years. Second, he said, [AASB] wanted to
address the appropriateness of its distribution, which resulted
in the cost nodel study. He added that he also thinks a real

solution would be for the noney to be distributed nore
appropriately. The third issue is maintaining the buying power.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- April 11, 2001



MR. ROSE stated that one thing that has conme up when talking
about education is the idea that if [the budget] had kept pace
with inflation, there would have been in the area of $900

mllion and no need for this discussion today. Instead, there'd
be di scussions on how to deal with the capacity and the pressure
of making sure that the pace was kept. He remarked that as he

understands it, [the state] has four years with which to work to
try to project into the future w thout running out of reserves.
He stated, "My concern is not for where we should have been; ny
concern is how we nove forward now. " He said there are costs
that need to be recovered, and rather than talk about the | ost
buyi ng power, "we" need to tal k about what we need as a system
to nake good on a promse that all kids can take and
successfully pass these exans. He suggested taking a |ook at
the basic need in the state; how the dollars are distributed,
based on a nore accurate cost nodel; and the buying power
conponents for the future.

Number 0602

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE, in reference to the job fair |ast week,
asked what the nunber of people who showed up was versus the
nunbers of vacanci es.

MR. KRONBERG responded that there were about 350 people who
attended the job fair, which is about one third of the nunber
five or six years ago. He stated the he does not know the
nunber of vacanci es.

CHAIR BUNDE stated that from the information he has, far fewer

peopl e attended than there were vacancies. One of the ongoing
challenges in education is that it is "heavy" in personnel. He
said perhaps, like Representative Geen's idea, there wll be
nore "nmechanical" delivery. However, he remarked that from
research he has seen the one consistent factor that inpacts
education the nost is a dedicated teacher. He asked M. Jeans

if he was aware of an increase in performance when $20 mllion
was added to the foundation forrmula in 1997.

MR. JEANS responded that the stated assessnent system that was
passed along with that legislation has just been inplenented in
the past couple of years. Therefore, the results are just now
com ng back. He added that the |legislature increased the
funding fornula, but at the sanme tinme the required |ocal effort
went up as well as the support from the federal governnent
t hrough the "inpact aid* program As a result, that $20 mllion

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -25- April 11, 2001



that went in has been redirected to other sources in the | ast
coupl e of years.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if that anount of noney is still there, but
just comng froma different source.

MR. JEANS answered that he was correct. He added that the
| egi slature does deserve sonme kudos for fully funding the
foundati on program for enrollnment increases during the past ten
years. He said during the sane tine that inflation went up 30
percent and the foundation fornula went up only 5 percent,
enrollnment in [Alaska] increased 25 percent. He stated that
[the EED] recognizes that it put additional burden and pressure
on the legislature in terns of funding the foundation program

Number 0327

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER stated that there is one statistic that
has not been nentioned. He said:

During the same period of time, what has happened to
the state's ability to pay? For the record, sonewhere
around 50 percent of the general fund inconme over that
period of tinme has been reduced. ... Two years ago the
| egi sl ature was somewhat shocked when, after
determ ning that every recognizable group in the state
favored the fiscal plan that we had devel oped, we were
brought up short by the fact that 84 percent of the
popul ation didn't agree with all those groups and the

| egi sl ature. That still has resulted in sone
confusion anong |egislators on exactly which track to
t ake. My suggestion to educators and teachers and

adm nistrators and parents groups is to recognize that
a revenue plan has to be in place before these kinds
of approaches can be considered, and to orchestrate
one bi g ef fort to convi nce their i ndi vi dual
| egislators of this particular fact so we can get one
in place. But our revenue is bleak, bleaker than what
we' ve been able to do with less in funding budgets.

CHAIR BUNDE remarked that M. Rose had said sonething about if
[the budget] was at $900 mllion for schools instead of $700
mllion, the CBR (constitutional budget reserve) would be
further eroded. Maybe, he said, the people could reach into
their pockets to pay the state a personal tax and the education
community could have this discussion with their neighbors rather
than with [the |egislature].

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 26- April 11, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE GUESS remarked that she thinks Representative
Bunde is acutely accurate with his comrents. She stated to
Representative Green that he makes a good point and that it was
not her intention to have a small fiscal note; she said she is
trying to get an accurate one for next year. She said he is
right that as the discussion noves forward it is necessary to be
aware of what inflation my be in a year and how that would
i npact the state. In response to Chair Bunde's comrents, she
said she has worked nost of her adult life in the private sector
and found it interesting that when raises and eval uations cane

along, the rule of thunmb was always, "If you got a raise that's
the sane as inflation, you should just |ook for another job
because they were just keeping you constant. And if you got a

raise over inflation, that neans they wanted you to stay there."
She stated that she agrees with Chair Bunde's comrent that "we"
woul d automatically be giving districts noney every year and
that in sonme ways it is just keeping [their funding] constant.

TAPE 01-25, SIDE A

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS continued, stating that this would be a
fundanmental shift in how education is funded next year if [the
| egi sl ature] thinks about education and a long-term fiscal plan.
This allows for [the funding] to be kept <constant wth
inflation, whether inflation goes up or down. She said this
then shifts the conversation to the base student allocation and
whet her or not [the |legislature] has the political wll.

[HB 211 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Conmmttee on Education neeting was adjourned at 9:37
a. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -27- April 11, 2001



